
 
 

Planning Commission 
 

 
Regular Meeting Agenda 
Thursday, July 9, 2014 
7:00 p.m., Council Chambers 

City of South Haven 
                                                                      

 

              
1. Call to Order  
 
2. Roll Call 

 
3. Approval of Agenda  
 
4. Approval of Minutes – June 4, 2015 

 
5. Interested Citizens in the Audience Will be Heard on Items Not on the Agenda 
 
6. New Business – Public Hearings 

 
a. Special use request from Gary Barner, of Barner Farms, South Haven, to operate a 

seasonal farm market at 615 Phillips Street. 
 

b. Ellen Montenaro of Evanston, IL has requested a special use permit to create a 
second floor apartment at 319 Center Street. This property is in the Central Business 
District and will have retail uses on the main floor. 
 

c. Public hearing on proposed amendments to the R1-C Zoning District regulations. 
 

7. Other Business – Discussion of animal ordinance 
 
8. Commissioner Comments 
 
9. Adjourn 
 
RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED, 
Linda Anderson, Zoning Administrator 



 

 
 

Planning Commission 
 

 
Regular Meeting Minutes  
Thursday, June 4, 2015 
7:00 p.m., Council Chambers 
 

City of South Haven 

 
 
              
1. Call to Order by Paull at 7:00 p.m. 
 
2. Roll Call 

 
Present: Heinig, Miles, Peterson, Smith, Stimson, Wall, Webb, Paull 
Absent:  Frost 
 
Motion by Heinig, second by Stimson to excuse John Frost. 
 
All in favor. Motion carried. 
 
Point of order: Stimson asked for confirmation that members should say “yes” and “no” 
instead of “Yay” and “Nay” and “second” instead of “support.” 

 
3. Approval of Agenda 
 

Motion by Wall, second by Heinig to approve the agenda as presented. 
 
All in favor. Motion carried. 

 
4. Election of Officers 2015-2016  
 

Paull explained two ways nominations could be made. 
 

Motion by Stimson, second by Smith to retain the current chair, Dave Paull and the current 
vice-chair, Larry Heinig.  
 
All in favor. Motion carried. 

 
5. Approval of Minutes – May 7, 2015 

 
Motion by Wall, second by Peterson to approve the May 7, 2015 minutes as written. 
 
All in favor. Motion carried. 
 

 

July 9, 2015 
Planning Commission 

Regular Meeting Agenda

Page 2 of 29



June 4, 2015 
Planning Commission 
Regular Meeting Minutes  
DRAFT 

 2 

6. Interested Citizens in the Audience Will be Heard on Items Not on the Agenda 
 

Joe Wilkins, 11 Indiana Street. Spoke about his concerns regarding the city’s dog ordinance.    
 
7. New Business – Site Plan Review 

 
a. Site plan review for reuse of industrial building located at 1400 Kalamazoo Street  

 
Anderson: This is a reuse of an industrial building that has been used for boat storage in 
the off-season. Ben Brush, the applicant, is proposing to use this building for engine 
repair. He received a variance so he could have trucks drive into his building and through 
and out. The city engineer has no issues with the proposal. Anderson recommends the 
approval of the site plan; there are no outstaning issues and it is a good reuse of the 
property. 

 
Paull noted the city appreciates the applicant bringing his business from the township into 
the city.  

 
Motion by Smith, second by Stimson approve the site plan with the condition that the city 
engineer has no remaining issues with the plan. 

 
All in favor. Motion carried. 
 
b. Site plan review for reuse of commercial building at 237 Broadway (former Save-a-

Lot) 
 

Anderson: This property went before the Zoning Board of Appeals which granted the 
landscaping variance request and denied the parking variance. This property is in the B-2 
General Business zone which requires parking based on square footage unlike the 
Central Business District (CBD). That application involved a brew pub and a restaurant. 
There was not enough parking. Since then, the proposed large restaurant dropped out of 
the application and the owner of the brew pub has decided to just put in the brew pub. 
The building will be divided up into usable floor area for the pub determined by what is 
permitted based on the existing parking, space for the large brewing equipment and a 
third area to age and store beer in kegs onsite instead of offsite as planned with the 
original request. 
 
Regarding the landscaping variance, Anderson noted that the Zoning Board granted the 
requested landscaping variance allowing the applicant to omit landscaping from the front 
of the building which goes right up to the sidewalk. Other landscaping requirements have 
been met by the applicant. 
 
Anderson also pointed out that this request does not need a special use or any variances 
and is a permitted use by right and she recommends that the request be approved. 
 
Tim Woodhams, 1503 East Center, Portage, Michigan: Pointed out that this project has 
completely changed from what was originally proposed. “A much more intense use was 
presented last time; we are scaling back to just the brewery and tap room.”  
 

July 9, 2015 
Planning Commission 

Regular Meeting Agenda

Page 3 of 29



June 4, 2015 
Planning Commission 
Regular Meeting Minutes  
DRAFT 

 3 

Wall asked if the applicant has applied for a liquor license to which Woodhams 
responded that it is not a liquor license, it is a brewery license. “That process begins 
today if this is approved and takes over six (6) months.”  
 
After further questions by Wall about neighbor approval, Anderson explained that the 
Planning Commission cannot consider certain other aspects of the propsal because it is a 
permitted use. “We can only consider what we have control over and that is limited to 
zoning. Anything that may happen with other agencies at other times we are not 
concerned with.” 
 
Smith commented that it sounds like a good project. 
 
Barry Fidelman, 220 Broadway, South Haven. Had questions about where delivery trucks 
are going to be pulling into that building and the density of the place because of the 
parking situation.  
 
Woodhams responded that as a part of the city engineers review the old loading dock 
and drive on the south side next to the synagogue is being removed as part of the site 
plan. The truck traffic will go to the loading dock on the north side of the property. “Our 
usable floor area will be no more than supported by existing parking under the 
ordinance.” Noted his brewer is excited to have the storage right on site for “sours” which 
are beers stored in large barrels and take six (6) or nine (9) months to a year to age.  
 
Motion by Wall to recommend the approval of the reuse of the commercial building at 237 
Broadway, as submitted. Second by Heinig.   
 
All in favor. Motion carried. 

 
8. Commissioner Comments 
 

Peterson: Seems like we are having fun tonight. 
Wall: Reminded that since this weekend is the car show, the farmer’s market will be in the 
park in front of the parking lot instead of under the pavilion. 
Heinig: Thanked the commission for the vote of confidence. 
Smith. Nice to have new businesses come to town. 
Paull: Thanked the commission for the vote of confidence to continue in this chair and for 
their good work. 
 
There were no other commissioner comments. 

 
9. Adjourn 
 

Motion by Wall, second by Miles to adjourn at 7:27 p.m. 
 
All in favor. Motion carried. 

 
RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED, 
 
Marsha Ransom 
Recording Secretary 

July 9, 2015 
Planning Commission 

Regular Meeting Agenda

Page 4 of 29



Planning Commission Staff Report 

 
Agenda Item #6a 

Seasonal Farm Market 
Special Use Request 

 
City of South Haven 

 
 
 

Background Information:  
 
The applicant would like to operate a seasonal produce stand on the Family Dollar property. 
Venders on private property are permitted to sell their own goods and produce for a period of up 
to two weeks, twice a year with a permit from the zoning administrator. Since this applicant is 
seeking to operate for a longer period, a special use permit under section 1510.13 is required.  
 
Recommendation:  
 
Staff recommends approval of the farm stand special use with the following conditions:  
 

1. The setback for any tents or covers shall be at least 25 feet from the property line.  
2. The area will be kept clear of all debris  
3. Trash bins shall be provided but will need to be removed after hours  
4. The stand shall be secured in the after hours.  
5. Only one sandwich board sign is permitted on a property  

 
 
Support Material:  
 
Completed application  
Case Summary  
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Linda Anderson 
Zoning Administrator 

July 9, 2015 
Planning Commission 

Regular Meeting Agenda

Page 5 of 29



July 9, 2015 
Planning Commission 

Regular Meeting Agenda

Page 6 of 29



July 9, 2015 
Planning Commission 

Regular Meeting Agenda

Page 7 of 29



July 9, 2015 
Planning Commission 

Regular Meeting Agenda

Page 8 of 29



July 9, 2015 
Planning Commission 

Regular Meeting Agenda

Page 9 of 29



GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Case Number ........................ 2015-0017 SLU 
 
Date of Plan Commission ...... 07.09.2015 
 
Applicant ............................... Gary Barner 
 
Request ................................ Applicant requests a seasonal farm stand in the B-2 zoning 

district. This request is supported by ordinance section 1510.13.  
 
Location ................................ 615 Phillips (Family Dollar site) 
 
Parcel Number ...................... 80-53-515-006-00 
 
Size ....................................... The sales will take place under a portable awning structure. The 

property is 0.9 acres in size (+/- 39,000 square feet)  
 
Street Frontage ..................... 262’ on Green St; 200’ on Phillips 
 
Current Zoning ...................... B-2 General Business 
 
Proposed Zoning ................... No Change 
 
Contiguous Zoning ................ North: B-2 and R-1B Districts  
 South: B-2 District 
 East: R1-B District 
 West: B-2 District 
 
Current Land Use .................. Family Dollar store 
 
Contiguous Land Uses .......... North: Residential and commercial 
 South: Commercial 
 East: Residential 
 West:  Commercial 
 
Comp Plan Designation ........ Commercial  
 
 
CHARACTER OF THE AREA 
The Subject Property is located at 615 Phillips Street. This is a busy intersection with a mix of 
commercial and residential land uses. The character of the area is consistant with the current 
zoning and future land use classification in its general commercial use.  
 
DEVELOPMENT PROPOSAL 
The applicant would like to operate a seasonal produce stand on the same property as the 
Family Dollar store. Venders on private property are permitted to sell their own goods for a 
period of up to two weeks, twice a year with a permit from the zoning administrator. Since this 
applicant is seeking to operate for a longer period, a special use permit under Section 1510.13 
is required. 

July 9, 2015 
Planning Commission 

Regular Meeting Agenda

Page 10 of 29



 
 
 
PUBLIC RESPONSE 
N/A  
 
EVALUATION 
The following provisions of the Zoning Ordinance are followed by a statement (in italics) 
representing the status of the subject property as it relates to that provision. 
 
Section 1510.13.  FARM MARKETS 
 
1. Locational requirements - Farm markets are permitted by special use permit on major 

thoroughfares in the B-2, B-4 and CBD districts for the sale of produce, fruit and farm 
products only.  

 
2. Site requirements 
 a. Minimum lot size of the district. In addition, it is permissible for a farm market to 

occupy a lot that has another use provided all requirements of this ordinance are 
met. 

 b. No activity or structure shall be located within twenty-five (25) feet of the public 
road right-of-way. 

 c. A minimum of six (6) spaces for off-street parking, outside of the public road 
right-of-way shall be required for the exclusive use of the farm market with 
additional spaces at the rate of one (1) space for each three-hundred (300) 
square feet of gross floor area (paving not required). 

 d. Suitable containers for rubbish shall be placed on the premises for public use. 
 e. A storage structure shall be permitted provided it does not exceed two hundred 

(200) square feet in area. 
 f. Farm markets shall be located no closer than one-hundred (100) feet from any lot 

line which abuts a residential zone or dwelling unit. 
 g. There shall be at least one access drive which shall be wide enough to 

accommodate two vehicles side-by-side. 
 
3. Buffering requirements  
 a. Shall comply with requirements of section 1709. 
 b. The outdoor storage of trash or rubbish shall be screened in accordance with 

section 1709. 
 
4. Performance standards 
 a. Hours of operation shall be between the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 7:00 p.m. 
 b. Any structure used as a farm market shall not be more than one (1) story high 

unless it is an existing barn 
 
The proposed market will be in the B-2 zoning district. The existing business on the property 
provides ample parking for the market. The property is large enough to allow the stand while 
complying with the required setback requirements. Trash containers will need to be provided but 
do not need to be screened if they are removed after hours. There is access provided for the 
use. 
 
The hours proposed, 11:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. comply with ordinance requirements. 

July 9, 2015 
Planning Commission 

Regular Meeting Agenda

Page 11 of 29



 
Screening may be waived given the seasonal nature of the proposed use. 
 
 
Article XV (Section 1502, Basis of Determination): 
 
1. General standards - the planning commission shall review the particular circumstances 

of the special use permit application under consideration in terms of the following 
standards and shall approve a special use permit application only upon a finding of 
compliance with each of the following standards, as well as applicable standards 
established elsewhere in this ordinance:   
 
A. The special land use shall be designed, constructed, operated and maintained in 

a manner harmonious with the character of adjacent property and the 
surrounding area. 

 
This is a commercial property and the use will be seasonal. There should be no 
negative impact on the surrounding neighborhood provided the site is well 
maintained and free of debris. 

 
B. The special land use shall not change the essential character of the surrounding 

area.   
 

The subject property is a developed B-2 parcels.  The nature of the proposed use 
is compatible with the B-2 character. 

 
C. The special land use shall not be hazardous to the adjacent property, property 

values, or involve uses, activities, processes, materials or equipment which will 
be detrimental to the health, safety or welfare of persons or property through the 
excessive production of traffic, noise, smoke, fumes, ground vibration, water 
runoff, odors, light, glare or other nuisance. 

 
There should be no harmful effects on the neighborhood as the use is only farm 
sales and will not produce dust, fumes or other irritants. 

 
D. The special land use shall not place demands on public services and facilities in 

excess of current capacity unless planned improvements have already been 
scheduled for completion. 

 
None expected. 

 
E. The special land use is consistent with the intent of the comprehensive plan. 

 
It is a stated goal of the 2011 Master Plan to, “Embrace the agricultural 
community as a valuable local industry (examples: Farmer's market, farming 
supply stores, fruit and vegetable processing and cold storage, agricultural 
related festivals, spin off industries)” and to “Develop agricultural and historical 
tourism in the region, supporting farmers market, farm tours, farm stands.” 
 

  This application helps further that goal. 

July 9, 2015 
Planning Commission 

Regular Meeting Agenda

Page 12 of 29



 
F. The special land use shall meet the site plan review requirements of Article IV. 
 

The site plan is in keeping with the needs of this request. 
 

G. The special land use shall conform to all applicable state and federal 
requirements for that use. 

 
The owner will need to show evidence of any such permits, if required. 

 
H. The special land use shall conform with all standards in this ordinance and other 

applicable city ordinances, including but not limited to parking (see Article XVIII), 
signs (see Article XX), and standards particular to the special land use found in 
the district provisions, schedule of regulations, or elsewhere. 
 
All such provisions will be in compliance with some minor site plan additions or 
changes. 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends approval of the farm stand special use with the following conditions: 
 

1. The setback for any tents or covers shall be at least 25 feet from the property line. 
2. The area will be kept clear of all debris 
3. Trash bins shall be provided but will need to be removed after hours 
4. The stand shall be secured in the after hours. 
5. Only one sandwich board sign is permitted 

 
 

July 9, 2015 
Planning Commission 

Regular Meeting Agenda

Page 13 of 29



Planning Commission Staff Report 

 
Agenda Item #6b 

Second Floor Residence in the CBD 
Special Use Request 

 
City of South Haven 

 
 
 

Background Information:  
 
Applicant requests a special use permit to have an apartment on the second floor of a retail 
business in the CBD. Onsite private parking is not required when only one residential unit is 
proposed. This request is supported by ordinance section 601.16. 
 
Recommendation:  
 
Staff recommends approval of the special use permit with the condition that the building code 
for residential units is in compliance as determined by the city building official.  
 
Support Material:  
 
Completed application 
Proposed floor plan  
Case Summary  
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Linda Anderson 
Zoning Administrator 

July 9, 2015 
Planning Commission 

Regular Meeting Agenda

Page 14 of 29



July 9, 2015 
Planning Commission 

Regular Meeting Agenda

Page 15 of 29



July 9, 2015 
Planning Commission 

Regular Meeting Agenda

Page 16 of 29



July 9, 2015 
Planning Commission 

Regular Meeting Agenda

Page 17 of 29



GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Case Number ........................ 2015-0016 SLU 
 
Date of Plan Commission ...... 07.09.2015 
 
Applicant ............................... Ellen Montenero 
 
Request ................................ Applicant requests a special use permit to have an apartment on 

the second floor of a retail business in the CBD. This request is 
supported by ordinance section 601.16.  

 
Location ................................ 319 Center Street 
 
Parcel Number ...................... 80-53-503-004-00 
 
Size ....................................... 3,078 sq. ft. +/- 
 
Street Frontage ..................... Approx. 27 feet on Center St. 
 
Current Zoning ...................... CBD Central Business District 
 
Proposed Zoning ................... No Change 
 
Contiguous Zoning ................ North: CBD  
 South: CBD 
 East: CBD 
 West: CBD 
 
Current Land Use .................. Vacant commercial 
 
Contiguous Land Uses .......... North: Commercial 
 South: Commercial 
 East: Commercial 
 West:  Commercial 
 
Comp Plan Designation ........ Commercial  
 
 
CHARACTER OF THE AREA 
The Subject Property is in the downtown area. This is a busy neighborhood with a mix of 
commercial land uses. The character of the area is consistant with the current zoning and future 
land use classification in its general commercial use.  
 
DEVELOPMENT PROPOSAL 
The applicant has been remodeling the main floor of this structure to allow two retail 
businesses. This application seeks to allow a second story residential unit. Such uses are 
permitted with a special use permit. 
 
 

July 9, 2015 
Planning Commission 

Regular Meeting Agenda

Page 18 of 29



 
PUBLIC RESPONSE 
N/A  
 
EVALUATION 
The following provisions of the Zoning Ordinance are followed by a statement (in italics) 
representing the status of the subject property as it relates to that provision. 
 
Article VI (Central Business District CBD) 
 
16. Dwellings located above a permitted use when authorized as a special land use.  

In considering such authorization, the planning commission shall ensure 
conformance with the following standards and article xv: 

 
a. Ingress and egress to the dwelling unit; 

 
b. The availability of parking for tenants and guests. One (1) dwelling unit per 

lot is allowed above any permitted use without providing any parking 
space, while additional units require two (2) spaces per unit; and, 

 
b. The impact on the building's exterior. 

 
The ingress/egress for the residence is through a separate Center Street door from the 
businesses. The single unit proposed does not require additional off-street parking. 
There will be no exterior sign of the special use. 
 
Article XV (Section 1502, Basis of Determination): 
 
1. General standards - the planning commission shall review the particular circumstances 

of the special use permit application under consideration in terms of the following 
standards and shall approve a special use permit application only upon a finding of 
compliance with each of the following standards, as well as applicable standards 
established elsewhere in this ordinance:   
 
A. The special land use shall be designed, constructed, operated and maintained in 

a manner harmonious with the character of adjacent property and the 
surrounding area. 

 
This is a commercial property and the alterations will be interior only. There 
should be no negative impact on the surrounding neighborhood. 

 
B. The special land use shall not change the essential character of the surrounding 

area.   
 

The subject property is a redeveloping CBD parcel.  The nature of the proposed 
use is compatible with the downtown character. 

 
C. The special land use shall not be hazardous to the adjacent property, property 

values, or involve uses, activities, processes, materials or equipment which will 

July 9, 2015 
Planning Commission 

Regular Meeting Agenda

Page 19 of 29



be detrimental to the health, safety or welfare of persons or property through the 
excessive production of traffic, noise, smoke, fumes, ground vibration, water 
runoff, odors, light, glare or other nuisance. 

 
There should be no harmful effects on the neighborhood as the use is only 
residential will not produce dust, fumes or other irritants. 

 
D. The special land use shall not place demands on public services and facilities in 

excess of current capacity unless planned improvements have already been 
scheduled for completion. 

 
None expected. 

 
E. The special land use is consistent with the intent of the comprehensive plan. 

 
It is a stated goal of the 2011 Master Plan to encourage better use of second 
stories in the CBD. The plan also recommends finding ways to make upper floor 
residences easier to develop. This application helps further the goal to keep the 
downtown active all year. 

 
F. The special land use shall meet the site plan review requirements of Article IV. 
 

The site plan is adequate for the needs of this request. 
 

G. The special land use shall conform to all applicable state and federal 
requirements for that use. 

 
The owner will need to show evidence of any such permits, if required. 

 
H. The special land use shall conform with all standards in this ordinance and other 

applicable city ordinances, including but not limited to parking (see Article XVIII), 
signs (see Article XX), and standards particular to the special land use found in 
the district provisions, schedule of regulations, or elsewhere. 
 
This application is in compliance with ordinance requirements. 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
 

Staff recommends approval of the special use permit contingent on the approval of the 
construction plans by the city building official. 

July 9, 2015 
Planning Commission 

Regular Meeting Agenda

Page 20 of 29



Planning Commission Staff Report 

 
Agenda Item #6c 

Proposed Amendments to the  
R1-C Zoning District 

 
City of South Haven 

 
 
 

Background Information:  
 
In order to further one of their 2015-2016 goals, the city council asked the planning commission 
to review the requirements of the R1-C zoning district. The concern of the council was that the 
R1-C area (also known as Historic Monroe Park) was becoming overbuilt for the lot sizes and 
the distance between structures was inadequate.  
 
The zoning subcommittee of the planning commission began work on this project in February of 
2015. The committee met four times to work on this task including one meeting with the city fire 
marshal, Tony Marsala. During that meeting the committee was informed of the challenges that 
would face the emergency services department if there should ever be a fire or other 
emergency in this district. Because the buildings are so close together and access areas are so 
narrow, it would be difficult for equipment and officers to access the emergency situations. In 
addition, the water supply to the area is much smaller than would be required as the system 
was laid for a different type of community than exists today.  
 
The fire marshal recommended the building separation that is in the draft amendment. This 
setback led to a larger building lot size to allow adequate size for construction. A maximum lot 
coverage requirement was added to prevent further drainage and runoff issues in the 
neighborhood. The pervious surface requirement was added as another method of limiting 
runoff onto neighboring properties.  
 
On May 7, 2015 the proposed amendment was presented to the full planning commission for 
discussion. It was moved to send the amendment to public hearing in July when most residents 
of the R1-C zone would be able to attend. It was agreed that the proposed amendment would 
likely result in a number of variance requests for undersized lots but it was also agreed that the 
overbuilding in the area needed to be curtailed. 
 
Recommendation:  
 
Staff recommends that the planning commission listen carefully to comments received at the 
meeting. It is likely that additional public hearings will be required before final amendments are 
drafted.  
 
Support Material:  
 
Draft Amendment to Section 404 

July 9, 2015 
Planning Commission 

Regular Meeting Agenda

Page 21 of 29



Aerial of Monroe Park 
Historic Monroe Park Building Ages map 
R1-C compliance with proposed lot sizes 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Linda Anderson 
Zoning Administrator 

July 9, 2015 
Planning Commission 

Regular Meeting Agenda

Page 22 of 29



SECTION 404.  R-1C AREA REQUIREMENTS 

No building or structure, nor the enlargement of any building or structure, shall be hereafter erected 
unless the following yards, lot area, lot coverage requirements and other conditions are provided and 
maintained in connection with such building, structure, or enlargement. 
 
1. Front Yard - There shall be a front yard of no less than three (3) eight (8) feet. 
 
2. Side Yard - There shall be side yards of no less than three (3) eight (8) feet.  
 
3. Rear Yard - There shall be a rear yard of no less than three (3) eight (8) feet  

 
4. Lot Area and Width - The minimum lot area and width for all uses in this District, unless 

specified elsewhere, shall be two thousand one hundred seventy-eight (2,178) and thirty-three 
(33) feet  three thousand two hundred and eleven (3,211) square feet and forty-three (43) 
feet, respectively. 
 

5. Lot Coverage – The maximum lot coverage by impervious surfaces in this zone shall be 
fifty percent (50%). 
 

6. Other Requirements – Driveway, walkways or other such surfaces shall be constructed 
using grass pavers or other pervious surface.  

 
SECTION 1904. RESTORATIONS AND REPAIRS (NON-CONFORMING STRUCTURES). 
 
 
5. Notwithstanding the provisions of the foregoing, structures within the Monroe Park Subdivision 

(bounded by Avery Street on the north; North Shore Drive on the east; Lake Michigan on the 
west; and the Black River on the south) damaged or destroyed by fire,  wind, or other calamity 
may be restored and the occupancy or use, as it existed at the time of such destruction, may be 
continued or resumed.   

 
 
 

July 9, 2015 
Planning Commission 

Regular Meeting Agenda

Page 23 of 29



LA
KE

 SH
OR

E D
R

NO
RT

H 
SH

OR
E D

R

GRAND
 BLV

D

OAK CT

AVERY ST

SOUTH ST

WATER ST

ESPLANADE PLZ

KALAMAZOO AVE

CHICAGO AVE

µR-1C Zoning District

July 9, 2015 
Planning Commission 

Regular Meeting Agenda

Page 24 of 29



LA
KE

 SH
OR

E D
R

NO
RT

H S
HO

RE
 DR

GRAND BLVD

AVERY ST

OAK CT

ESPLANADE PLZ

SOUTH ST
KALAMAZOO AVE

CHICAGO AVE

R-1C Building Age

Age
Unknown
Vacant Land
1840 - 1947
1982 - 2015

July 9, 2015 
Planning Commission 

Regular Meeting Agenda

Page 25 of 29



LA
KE

 SH
OR

E D
R

GRAND BLVD

NO
RT

H 
SH

OR
E D

R

OAK CT

AVERY ST

ESPLANADE PLZ

KALAMAZOO AVE

SOUTH ST

CHICAGO AVE

WATER ST

Meets Proposed Min. 3,211 SQ FT Lot
No (65%)
Yes (35%)

R-1C Properties Compliance with 3,211 SQ Ft Proposed Minimum Lot Area

Excludes City Owned Properties

July 9, 2015 
Planning Commission 

Regular Meeting Agenda

Page 26 of 29



LA
KE

 SH
OR

E D
R

GRAND BLVD

NO
RT

H 
SH

OR
E D

R

OAK CT

AVERY ST

ESPLANADE PLZ

KALAMAZOO AVE

SOUTH ST

CHICAGO AVE

WATER ST

Meets 43' Ft Min. Lot Width
No (45.6%)
Yes (54.4%)

R-1C Properties Compliance with 43 Ft Proposed Minimum Lot Width

Excludes City Owned Properties

July 9, 2015 
Planning Commission 

Regular Meeting Agenda

Page 27 of 29



LA
KE

 SH
OR

E D
R

GRAND BLVD

NO
RT

H 
SH

OR
E D

R

OAK CT

AVERY ST

ESPLANADE PLZ

KALAMAZOO AVE

SOUTH ST

CHICAGO AVE

WATER ST

Min SQFT / Min Lot Width
No / No (42.1%)
No / Yes (22.8%)
Yes / No (3.5%)
Yes / Yes (31.6%)

R-1C Properties Compliance with 
Proposed Minimum Lot Area of 3,211 SQ Ft &
Proposed Minimum Lot Width of 43 Ft

Excludes City Owned Properties

July 9, 2015 
Planning Commission 

Regular Meeting Agenda

Page 28 of 29



Planning Commission Staff Report 

 
Agenda Item #7 

Animal Control Ordinance Question 
 

City of South Haven 
 
 
 

Background Information:  
 
City officials have received comments from concerned citizens regarding the recently adopted 
amendments to the animal control ordinance prompting the city manager to ask the planning 
commission to revisit the matter.  
 
The City Code of Ordinances, Section 6-1, reads, “Reasonable control of a dog means 
restraining the animal on a suitable leash in all places other than the property of the owner. A 
dog need not be leashed when on the property of the owner so long as the animal is kept under 
the oral control of the owner”.   
 
The city manager has asked that the planning commission consider an amendment that dogs 
be allowed to be outside of the owner’s house only if on a leash or if the lot is fenced. No dogs 
would be able to run free in an unfenced yard. The city manager has stated that the planning 
commissioner’s decision in this matter will stand. 
 
Recommendation:  
 
Staff recommends that the planning commission discuss this matter and determine if additional 
amendments to the city code are needed. 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Linda Anderson 
Zoning Administrator 

July 9, 2015 
Planning Commission 

Regular Meeting Agenda

Page 29 of 29


	07-09-2015 PC Agenda pg
	06-04-2015 PC Minutes draft
	#6a. Barner Farms Request
	#6a Staff Report
	Agenda Item #6a

	application
	Case summary
	PUBLIC RESPONSE
	EVALUATION


	#6b. 319 Center Street Request
	#6b Staff Report
	Application
	Proposed floor plan
	Case summary
	PUBLIC RESPONSE
	EVALUATION


	#6c. R-1C Proposed Zoning Amendments
	#6c Staff Report
	Page 2 - #6c Staff Report

	Draft Section 404
	SECTION 404.  R-1C AREA REQUIREMENTS

	Aerial of Monroe Park
	Historic_Monroe_Park_Building_Ages
	R-1C_Compliance_With_Proposed_Lot_Area__Width
	R-1C_Compliance_With_Proposed_Minimum_Lot_Area
	R-1C_Compliance_With_Proposed_Minimum_Lot_Width
	R-1C_Compliance_With_Proposed_Minimum_Lot_Area_&_Width


	#7. Animal Control Ordinance Question



